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City of Seattle

Request For Proposal (RFP)# SPU-2799
Addendum
Updated 12/13/10

The following is additional information regarding RFP #SPU-2799, titled Seattle Opt-Out System released on November 24, 2010.  The Proposal due date of 01/07/2011 @ 4:00 pm Pacific remains unchanged. 
The pre-proposal conference provided a forum for a relatively informal dialog between prospective proposers and the City of Seattle spokespeople in an attempt to clarify the City’s requirements.  The following set of questions and answers is NOT a verbatim account of that discussion.  What is presented here is an attempt to capture the essence of each question asked at the conference along with an answer that is more considered and researched than that given in the discussion.  In some cases the answer is simply changed for grammatical correctness, whereas, in other cases, the answer may appear totally different.  

Regardless of the differences between the dialog that took place on 12/07/10 and this document, this document is the official response to the questions offered in the Pre-Proposal Conference.  

This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.   Vendors should review the Q&A carefully as some of the responses have been reworded/clarified.  These written Q&A's take precedence over any verbal Q&A.

From:  Jason Edens, Sr. Buyer

City of Seattle Purchasing

Phone:  206-684-0445; Fax 206-233-5155

Email Address:  jason.edens@seattle.gov
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Response
	ITB Additions/Revisions

	1
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	What are the obligations of proposers regarding the City of Seattle business license?
	Information regarding the City of Seattle business license requirements may be found at the following website:

http://www.seattle.gov/rca/licenses/Licmain.htm

	

	2
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Are phone book distributors required to include the registry e-mail address on the cover of each book?
	No. Distributors are only required to include the registry website address, phone number and mailing address on the cover.
	

	3
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	How many phone book distributors are delivering in Seattle? Is the City able to provide a list?
	The exact number is unknown, but the City currently anticipates that three (3) or four (4) phone book distributors will likely be required to participate in the registry. The City is not able to provide a list, but proposals should assume that the major national phone book distributors deliver in Seattle.
	

	4
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Will the Vendor be allowed to send general e-mails to registered users of the opt-out system regarding operational issues, such as when the site will be down?
	Yes.
	

	5
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Will the Vendor be allowed to ask users during the registration process if they want to opt-in to the Vendor’s informational newsletter?
	Yes. However, the City prefers that the website require the user to intentionally check a box to opt-in to the newsletter rather than be automatically opted-in if they don’t un-check a box.
	

	6
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Will the Vendor be responsible for determining if a person is authorized to submit an opt-out request on behalf of a business?
	No. The Vendor should assume the person is authorized to submit the request.
	

	7
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Regarding 6.1.2.11, will the City provide the Vendor with a list of eligibility requirements?
	Yes. However, the City would also like input on eligibility requirements based on the Vendor’s own experience. 
	

	8
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Regarding 6.1.2.11, will the Vendor need to be able to determine if an address is eligible based on phone book distributor service areas in Seattle?
	Proposals should assume that all phone book distributors deliver to all addresses in Seattle.
	

	9
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Regarding 6.1.3.15, will the City be able to inform the Vendor when a resident or business moves?
	Proposals should assume that the City won’t be able to provide this information.
	

	10
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Regarding Specification #2, will the Vendor be required to use a specific title on the junk and catalog mail opt-out landing page? Specifically, will the Vendor be required to use the term junk mail?
	The Vendor may propose a title. However, per 6.2.2.3, the Vendor will be required to submit the title and all other text on the landing page to SPU for review and approval.
	

	11
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Are proposals allowed to indicate any pricing efficiencies achieved in the event the proposer is awarded contracts for both specifications? 
	Yes. Proposals may indicate pricing efficiencies for providing services for both specifications. However, proposals must still provide separate pricing for each specification, indicating the full price if the proposer is only awarded a contract for one specification.
	

	12
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	Are proposers required to meet all requirements stated in the Statement of Work and Specifications?
	No. Proposals will be evaluated against one another. The proposal that provides the best overall service will be awarded the contracted. 

However, all proposals must meet the Minimum Qualifications and Mandatory Technical Requirements in order to be considered.
	

	13
	12/07/2010
	12/13/2010
	If the City is considering a hosted option, what escrow considerations are there?


	The City desires to ensure contingency of systems in place for Specification 1 for Phone Books. The vendor shall identify what method that is achieved by as well as any costs that might be incurred by the City. If the method proposed is Escrow, the following provisions apply.
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[image: image2.png]1.1. Source Code Escrow Package Definition.  The term “Source Code Escrow Package” shall mean: 

a. A complete copy in machine-readable form of the source code and executable code of the licensed Software;


b. A complete copy of any existing design documentation and user documentation and/or


c. Complete instructions for r compiling and linking every part of the source code into executable code for purposes of enabling verification of the completeness of the source code as provided below.  Such instructions shall include precise identification of all compilers, library packages, and linkers used to generate executable code.


Delivery of Source Code Into Escrow.  Vendor shall deliver a Source Code Escrow Package to Escrow Agent, provided that Vendor, City and Escrow Agent shall first enter into a supplementary escrow agreement as attached.  Vendor and City shall use best efforts to enter into such an Escrow Agreement as soon as possible after the Effective Date of this Contract, but not later than 30 days after the Effective Date of this Contract.


1.2. Delivery of New Source Code into Escrow.  If during the term of this Contract, term of license, or term of maintenance and support, Vendor provides City with a maintenance release or upgrade version of the licensed Software, Vendor shall within then (10) Business Days deposit with Escrow Agent a Source Code Escrow Package for the maintenance release or upgrade version and give city notice of such delivery.


1.3. Verification of Source Code Escrow Package.  At its option and expense, City may request that the completeness and accuracy of any Source Code Escrow Package be verified.  


a. Such verification may be requested once per Source Code Escrow Package.  


b. Such verification will be conducted by Escrow Agent, or upon at least ten (10) Business Days’ prior notice to the Vendor, by another party (“verifier”) acceptable to Vendor, after full disclosure to Vendor of information reasonably requested by Vendor about Verifier. 


c. Prior to conducting the verification, Verifier shall first execute a confidentiality agreement prepared by Vendor that precludes Verifier from disclosing any information to City about the Source Code Escrow Package other than whether the Source Code Escrow Package was found to be complete and accurate.


d. Unless otherwise agreed at the time y Vendor and City, verification will be performed on-site at Vendor’s premises, utilizing Vendor’s equipment and software, at a time reasonably acceptable to Vendor.  Vendor shall make technical and support personnel available as reasonably necessary for the verification. At its discretion, Vendor may designate a representative to accompany the Source Code Escrow Package at all times, and to be present at the verification.  Verifier will be City’s sole representative at the verification.


e. Verifier is solely responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the verification.  Neither the Escrow Agent, if different from the Verifier, nor Vendor shall have any responsibility or liability to City for any incompleteness or inaccuracy of any verification.


1.4. Escrow Fees.  All fees and expenses charged by Escrow Agent will be borne by Vendor.


1.5. Release Events for Source Code Escrow Packages.  The Source Code Escrow Package may be released from escrow to City, temporarily or permanently, solely upon the occurrence of one or more of the following “Escrow Release Events:”


a. Vendor becomes insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, files a voluntary petition of bankruptcy, suffers or permits the appointment of a receiver for business or assets, or becomes subject to any proceeding under any bankruptcy or solvency law, whether domestic or foreign;


b. Vendor has wound up or liquidated its business voluntarily or otherwise and City has compelling reasons to believe that such events will cause Vendor to fail to meet its warranties and maintenance obligations in the foreseeable future; or


c. Vendor has wound up or liquidated its business voluntarily or otherwise and City has compelling reasons to believe that such events will cause Vendor to fail to meet its warranties and maintenance obligations in the foreseeable future; or


d. Vendor has voluntarily or otherwise discontinued support of the Software or fails to support the Software in accordance with its warranties and maintenance obligations.


1.6. Release Event Procedures.  If City desires to obtain the Source Code Escrow Package   from Escrow Agent:


a. City shall comply with the procedures set forth in the Escrow Agreement to document the occurrence of the Release Event;


b. City shall maintain all materials and information comprising the Source Code Escrow Package in confidence in accordance with the Contract section titled Vendor’s Proprietary Information;


c. If release is temporary, City shall promptly return all released materials to Vendor when the circumstances leading to the release are no longer in effect; and


d. City shall promptly, fully, and completely respond to any and all requests for information from Vendor concerning City’s use or contemplated use of the Source Code Escrow Package.



